






































































































































106.

107.

108.

109.

110.

By reason of their acts and omissions, Defendants, acting under color of state law and
within the scope of their autbority, in gross and wanton violation of Plaintiffs’ and all
other similarly situated Jewish students’ constitutional rights, subjected Plaintiffs’ and
other similarly situated Jewish students, to unlawful discrimination in violation of the
Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and of 42 U.S.C. Section 2000d
et. seq., Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as enforced through the 42 U.S.C. §1983.
By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs and similarly situated Jewish students, suffered and
continue to suffer, mental injuries, economic injuries, deprivation of liberty and privacy,
terror, humiliation, harassment and other psychological and emotional injuries. All of said
injuries are permanent.

SECOND COUNT- NEW YORK HUMAN RIGHTS LAW

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

The Mahopac Central School District pattern of failing to address the ongoing anti-
Semitic behavior toward Plaintiffs’ is in violation NY Human Rights Law §§296(2)(a),
296(4), 296(6), (296)(7).

Defendants, acting as an education corporation or association which holds itself out to the
public to be non-sectarian and exempt from taxation, permitted the discrimination,

harassment and threats of violence against Plaintiffs by reason of their race and religion.

33



111. By knowingly failing to take action to prevent and/or stop ongoing discrimination,
harassment and threats of violence directed against Plaintiffs, Defendants were aiding,
abetting and inciting, other individual non-Plaintiff Student Actors and others to continue
their discriminatory conduct.

112. By knowingly failing to take action to prevent and/or stop ongoing discrimination,
harassment and threats of violence directed against Plaintiffs and then disciplining
Plaintiff H.B. by banishing her from her lunchroom table and otherwise fostering an
atmosphere of intimidation and hostile educational environment, Defendants unlawfully
retaliated against Plaintiffs.

113. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of

the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and

severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.
114. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

THIRD COUNT - INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

115. Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

116. The Mahopac Central School District pattern of failing to address the ongoing anti-

Semitic behavior toward Plaintiffs’ has caused severe emotional distress to the Plaintiffs.

i17. Defendanis’ actions and inactions are exireme and outrageous conduct.
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118.

119.

120.

121.

122,

123.

124.

125.

126.

This conduct was done with the intent to cause, or disregard of a substantial probability of
causing, severe emotional distress to the Plaintiffs.

This conduct was the direct cause of Plaintiffs’ severe emotional distress.

The Plaintiffs emotional distress was severe in that it was of such intensity and duration
that no reasonable student or adult should be expected to endure it.

FOURTH COUNT - ASSAULT

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

The Plaintiffs have suffered an assault due to the action and inactions of the Defendants.

The Defendants’ actions and inactions placed the Plaintiffs in apprehension of imminent
harmful or offensive contact.

The Defendants’ actions and inactions were done with the intent to cause, or disregard of
a substantial probability of causing, an assault.

Student actors had the real and apparent ability to bring about harmful or offensive bodily
contact and the Mahopac Central School District and its employees, representatives,
agents, servants and assigns were well aware of this fact.

Defendants’ inadequate supervision and failure to address the known incidents of
religious and racial harassment resulted in Plaintiff H.B. being assaulted and was a

foreseeable result of their inadequate supervision, and their conduct of actions and

inactions.
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127.

128.

129.

130.

131.

132,

133.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

FIFTH COUNT - NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

Defendant Mahopac Central School District, Defendant BOE and Defendants Manko and
Gurkin had a duty to train and supervise its employees and others under their control in
order to prevent students in their care from becoming subject to discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, hate and bias crimes and threats of violence.

Defendant Mahopac Central School District, Defendant BOE and Defendants Manko and
Gurkin breached that duty.

This breach of duty was a direct and proximate cause of Plaintiffs being harmed and
daméged. Plaintiffs were subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation and
threats of violence, that had Defendant administrators properly trained and supervised its
employees and other personnel under their control, would have been prevented.
Defendant Mahopac Central School District, Defendant BOE and Defendants Manko and
Gurkin had a duty to supervise, instruct, counsel, educate and discipline non-Plaintiff

Student Actors in order to prevent their Jewish students and others from becoming
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subject to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, hate and bias crimes and threats of

violence.

134 Upon information and belief Defendant Mahopac Central School District, Defendant
BOE and Defendants Manko and Gurkin breached that duty.

135. This breach of duty was a direct and proximate cause of Plaintiffs being harmed and
damaged. As Plaintiffs were subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation and
threats of violence, that had Defendants properly supervised non-Plaintiff Student Actors,
would have been prevented.

136.  As a direct and proximate cause of Defendants® Negligent Supervision Plaintiffs were
harmed and damaged.

137. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

138. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

SIXTH COUNT - HOSTILE EDUCATIONAL ENVIRONMENT

139.  Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

140,  Defendants’ pattern of failing to address the ongoing anti-Semitic behavior toward
Plaintiffs created a hostile educational environment based on race and religion.

141.  Defendants failed in their duty to provide a nondiscriminatory educational environment
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142.

143,

144.

145.

146.

147.

148.

for their charges, and had been made aware of egregious forms of intentional religious
and racial discrimination and violence, made the infentional choice to sit by and do
northing in dereliction of their fiduciary duties and legal obligations.

Defendants previous notice of anti-Semitic harassment, discrimination, violence, and hate
and bias crimes, and deliberately ignoring of the above facts facilitated and maintained a
hostile educational environment based on religion and race, which allowed the
harassment, discrimination, intimidation, threats of violence, and hate and bias crimes, to
be continued, which are still ongoing.

As a direct and proximate cause of the hostile educational environment Plaintiffs were
harmed and damaged.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

SEVENTH COUNT - NEGLIGENCE PER SE - FEDERAL HATE CRIME
PREVENTION

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

Negligence pet se is negligence as a result of the violation of a public duty.

Defendants had a duty to prevent discrimination, harassment, intimidation, violence and

threats of violence, and hate and bias crimes, against its students.
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149.

150.

151.

152.

153.

154.

Defendants were on notice that such discrimination, harassment, intimidation, violence
and threats of violence, and hate and bias crimes, existed and did little or nothing about
these known events in breach of their duties.

Defendants are expected to prevent discrimination, harassment, intimidation, violence
and threats of violence, and hate and bias crimes, and in addition to the above mentioned
anti-discrimination laws, including but not limited to Plaintiffs’ rights under 42 U.S.C.
Section 2000d et. seq., Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 14® Amendment of
the United States Constitution as enforced through the 42 U.S.C. § 1983, to prevent
discrimination in the form of hate crimes in public schools that receive federal funds, 20
US.C. §7133.

These laws create a duty to prevent and address discrimination, harassment, intimidation,
violence and threats of violence, and hate and bias crimes and other violations, which
Defendants breached.

As a direct and proximate cause of such breaches of duty by Defendants, Plaintiffs were
and continue to suffer damage and harm.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of

the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.



155.

156.

157.

158.

159.

160,

161.

EIGHTH COUNT - TITLE VI

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further aliege as follows.

Plaintiffs, all of Jewish descent, are members of a protected class.

Defendant Matiopac Central School District receives financial assistance from the United
States Department of Education. As a result, Defendant Mahopac Central School District
is liable to suit under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

Defendant Mahopac Central School District violated Title VI by discriminating against
Plaintiffs on the basis of tace, by maintaining a policy and practice of discriminatory
disciplining of students on the basis of race, by being deliberately indifferent to the
maintenance of a racially hostile educational environment, by segregating students into
different rooms on the basis of race, and by retaliating against parents and students who
complain about racial discrimination.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintifis were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

NINTH COUNT - TITLE IX CLAIMS

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
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162.

163.

164.

paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

Plaintiff H.B. suffered a series of discriminatory, hostile and physically threatening acts at
the hands of Defendants Mahopac Central School District, Mahopac Central School
District Board of Education, Thomas J. Manko, Ira Gurkin, their predecessors and other
agents and assigns of Defendant Mahopac Central School District af least as early as
January 20, 2004.

Upon information and belief, that alleged assaults and discriminatory actions were due to
the deliberate and intentional conduct of the Defendants Mahopac Central School
District, Mahopac Central School District Board of Education, Thomas J. Manko, Ira
Gurkin and other agents and assigns of Defendant Mahopac Central School District who,
among other things, failed and refused intentionally and with deliberate indifference to
take action on the safety concerns of the Plaintiff, as expressed during the entire course of
bher enroliment at Mahopac Central School District by the Defendants’ failure to protect
H.B. from anti-Semitic attacks, by segregating her from the only support group she had at
the Mahopac Central School District and by moving her to an unsafe and unsecured
location and failing to discipline the student offenders.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants named in this action for a sum in excess of the all jurisdictional limits for
compensatory damages. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct of alt of the
Defendants, Plaintiff has been severely and permanently damaged and upon information

and belief has been unable to return to the Mahopac Central School District.
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165.

166.

167.

168.

169.

170.

For the conduct alleged herein, each of the aforesaid Defendants are jointly and severally
liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

For the conduct alleged herein, each of the aforesaid Defendants are jointly and severally
liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

TENTH COUNT - VIOLATIONS OF SUBSTANTIVE AND PROCEDURAL DUE
PROCESS

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

Defendants have violated the Plaintiffs' procedural and substantive due process rights
under the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution in
Violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

The Mahopac Middle School Student Handbook states, “bullying, profanity, threats,
harassing or abusive language, including sexual harassment, racial and ethnic slurs, are
unacceptable. Individuals should report any such incident to a teacher, counselor,
administrator, for investigation and resolution. Such behavior will result in a meeting
with the Principal or Assistant Principal and appropriate action will be taken, which may
include suspension...Examples of such conduct include, but are not limited to:
DISCRIMINATION, which includes the use of race, color, creed, national origin,

religion, gender, sexual orientation or disability, as a basis for treating another in a
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171.

172.

173.

negative manner. HARRASSMENT, which includes a sufficiently severe action or

persistent persuasive pattern of actions or statements directed at identifiable individual or
group which are intended to be, or which a reasonable person would perceive as,
ridiculing or demeaning. INTIMIDATION, which includes engaging in actions or
staternents that put an individual in fear of bodily harm. DEFAMATION, which includes
making false or unprivileged statements or representiations about an individual or
identifiable group of individuals that harm the reputation of the person or identifiable
group by demeaning them.” Mahopac Middle School Handbook, pg. 24.

Students who engage in harassment, threats, intimidation, or bullying of other students
can be suspended for up to five days. Mahopac Middle School Handbook, pg. 26.

The Mahopac High School Student Hand Book states, “harassment of any kind is defined
as deliberate and/or repeated behavior that is not welcomed, asked for, and not returned
and includes sexual, racial, or personal harassment. Any student who believes that he or
she has been subjected to harassment should report the alleged misconduct immediately

to a counselor or administrator so that appropriate action may be taken.” Mahopac High

School Student Hand Book, pg. 19.

The New York State Education Department has instituted a Bullying Prevention Program,
(hereinafter “BPP”), a universal intervention program for the reduction and prevention of
bully/victim problems. The main arena for the program is the school, and school staff has
the primary responsibility for the introduction and implementation of the program. See

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ssae/schoolsafety/sdfsca/BullyingPreventionProgramBPP . html

(last visited December 7, 2010).
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174.

175.

176.

177.

178.

179.

180.

181.

Defendants failed to act when Plaintiffs complained, in writing and otherwise, to
Defendants about the anti-Semitic conduct they endured at the hands of the Defendants
and students in the Defendant District.

Following the traumatic assaults, hostility and discriminatory conduct Plaintiff H.B.
endured as a student at Defendant Mahopac Central School District, Plaintiff H.B. had
and continues to suffer severe emotional trauma and maladies and disorders. Upon
information and belief, Defendants knew about Plaintiff H.B.’s severe emotional trauma.
Defendants intentionally and deliberately deprived Plaintiff H.B. of her property right in
education.

Plaintiff H.B. could not function in the environment created by Defendants and was
forced to leave the Mahopac Central School District.

Defendants conspired to create an environment that would deprive Plaintiff H.B. of her
civil rights as a student as well as her property right to education.

The educational environment at Mahopac Central School District became so permeated
with hostility and anti-Semitism that it became impossible for H.B. to receive a
meaningful educational benefit and to function without fear and anxiety.

The aforesaid Defendants and each of them, acting under color of state law, deprived
Plaintiff of her due process of law by failing to provide Plaintiff protection of her right to
be free from discrimination in viclation of Plaintiff's rights under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

At all relevant times hereto the aforesaid Defendants acted and continue to act under

color of state law and within the scope of their authority.



182.

183.

184.

185.

186.

187.

188.

189.

Defendant, Mahopac Central School District, is an educational institution regulated by the
State of New York Department of Education.

The Defendant District has a duty to act iz loco parentis, that is, to act as the parent in the
parents’ absence,

The Defendant District breached this duty when it failed to intervene or take and
preventive measures to protect H.B. By ignoring the anti-Semitic behavior and allowing
bullying to continue, the Defendant District breached its duty as Joco parentis and denied
H.B. of her substantive and due process rights.

The Plaintiff was and continues to be deprived of her procedural and substantive due
process rights under the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States
Constitution in violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983.

As a proximate cause of Defendants’ violation of Plaintiff's procedural and substantive
due process rights, Plaintiff has been seriously harmed.

By reason of the foregoing, and as a direct and proximate cause of the conduct of the
aforesaid Defendants in effect taking Plaintiff's property, Plaintiff was and continues to be
harmed in many ways.

For the due process violations alleged herein, all of the aforesaid Defendants are jointly
and severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the aforesaid Defendants Mahopac Central School District, Mahopac Central School
District Board of Education, Thomas J. Manko, Ira Gurkin and other agents and assigns
of Defendant Mahopac Central School District, individually as well as in their official
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190.

191.

192.

193.

194.

capacities as employees or former employees of the Defendant Mahopac Ceniral School
District, and for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits for compensatory damages.
By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendanté in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense,

ELEVENTH COUNT - DEFAMATION

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding.
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.

On or about January 13, 2010, Defendant Manko communicated with Plaintiff N.B. and
accused H.B. of somehow being complicit in the anti-Semitic acts of the other students by
“gloating” on her Facebook page, which page was provided to Defendants Manko and
Gurkin by the parents of one of the perpetrators of the anti-Semitic acts. Defendant
Manko sent Plaintiff N.B. a copy of the Facebook page in question.

Upon review of the subject Facebook page, Plaintiff N.B. determined that such submitted
page was, in fact, a fabrication, and did provide the results of his analysis to Defendants
Manko and Gurkin, each of whom corroborated on J anuary 15, 2010 that the subject
Facebook page was, in fact, a fabrication and part of an Internet smear campaign against
HB.

Notwithstanding these revelations, no actions were taken by Defendants against any of
the parties involved. Creation of a false Facebook containing defamatory statements and

disseminating this document exposed Plaintiff H.B. to public hatred, contempt, ridicule

and disgrace.
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195.

196.

197.

198.

199.

200.

Plaintiff H.B. was publicly labeled as a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other
students in trouble or subject them to discipline. The statements that were attributed to
H.B. were of a potentially discriminatory nature with the ability to incite the population at
Mahopac Central School Disirict. Plaintiff H.B. was brandished as a mean and disgusting
person and was therefore isolated.

There could be no doubt that the public labeling of Plaintiff H.B. as a person engaged in
deliberate attempts to get other students in trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the
false allegation that she was engaged in discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite
could not be mistaken as being directed at Plaintiff H.B.

All of the Defendants engaged in conduct that repeatedly published their false allegations
that Plaintiff H.B. was a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other students in
trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the false allegation that she was engaged in
discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite.

Being falsely and publicly labeled as a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other
students in trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the false allegation that she was
engaged in discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite is a stigmatizing event that has
a lasting impact.

All of the above caused Plaintiffs extreme harm.

Being falsely and publicly labeled a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other
students in trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the false allegation that she was

engaged in discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite other students, cost Plaintiff
H.B. a meaningful educational benefit.
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201.

20Z.

203,

204.

205.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein. By reason of the
foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of the Defendants in
ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

TWELFTH COUNT - DEFAMATION PER SE
Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at lengih herein, and further allege as follows.
All Defendants engaged in conduct that falsely labeled Plaintiff H.B. a person engaged in
deliberate attempts to get other students in trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the
false allegation that she was engaged in discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite
and caused her to have to leave the Defendant Mahopac Central School District. These
false allegations exposed Plaintiffs to public hatred, contempt, ridicule, or disgrace.
There could be no doubt that the public labeling of Plaintiff H.B. as a person engaged in
deliberate attempts to get other students in trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the
false allegation that she was engaged in discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite
could not be mistaken as being directed at Plaintiff H.B.
All of the Defendants engaged in conduct that repeatedly published their false allegations
that Plaintiff H.B. was a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other students in

trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the false allegation that she was engaged in
discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite.
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206.

207.

208.

209,

210.

211.

Being falsely and publicly labeled as a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other
students in trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the false allegation that she was
engaged in discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite is a stigmatizing event that has
lasting impact.
All of the above caused Plaintiffs extreme harm.
Being falsely labeled as a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other students in
trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the false allegation that she was engaged in
diécrinﬁnatory conduct or attempting to incite in the current social context of our times is
s0 heinous by itself so as to not require plaintiff to show specific damages.
By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein. By reason of the
foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of the Defendants in
ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

THIRTEENTH COUNT - PRIMA FACIE TORT
Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.
Defendants’ intentional conduct in falsely, publicly and intentionally labeling Plaintiff
H.B. as a person engaged in deliberate attempts to get other students in trouble or subject
them to discipline and/or the false allegation that she was engaged in discriminatory
conduct or attempting to incite was a malevolent intentional infliction of harm.
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212.

213.

214.

215.

216.

217.

218.

The intentional conduct of all of the Defendants forced Plaintiff to leave the Defendant
Mahopac Central School District and denied her the right to a free and appropriate public
education.

Plaintiffs have suffered special damages as a direct and proximate cause of all of the
Defendants conduct.

All Defendants’ conduct was intentionally aimed at causing Plaintiffs financial harm.

The stigmatizing effect of being falsely and publicly labeled as a person engaged in
deliberate attempts to get other students in trouble or subject them to discipline and/or the
false allegation that she was engaged in discriminatory conduct or attempting to incite has
severely damaged Plaintiffs’ abilities to seek financial and employment opportunities
commensurate with their training and expenence.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of

the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

FOQURTEENTH COUNT - DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF RACE IN
VIOLATION OF THE EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSE AND 42 U.S8.C. §1983

Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were

more fully set forth at length herein, and further allege as follows.
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219.

220.

221.

222.

223.

Defendants, acting under color of state law, deprived Plaintiffs of federally protected
rights, including but not limited to, rights secured by the Equal Protection Clause of the
14" Amendment of the U.S. Constitution, by maintaining a policy and practice of
discriminatorily disciplining students on the basis of race, by being deliberately
indifferent to the maintenance of a racially hostile educational environment, by
segregating students into different class/lunch rooms on the basis of race, and by
retaliating against parents and students who complain about racial discrimination.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were and continue to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and
severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.

By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

FIFTEENTH COUNT - NEGLIGENCE

Defendants, as loco parentis, had a duty to protect H.B. from discriminatory, hostile and
potentially violent conduct when she was at school. Furthermore, Defendants were
required to prevent bullying and to take action in response to bullying by the Bullying
Prevention Program established by the New York State Department of Education and by
Defendants own handbook which delineated the duty of its own facuity and staff to
prevent and take action against bullying.

By failing to respond to Plaintiffs complaints of anti-Semitism, racism, bullying and
defamation and by allowing anti-Semitism, racism and discrimination to persist and
pervade the educational environment such that Plaintiff H.B. was unable to receive any
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224,

225.

226,

227.

228.

229.

meaningful benefit and was forced to leave the Defendant Mahopac Central School
District and attend private school, Defendants breached their duty to Plaintiffs.
Defendants’ breach was an actual and proximate cause of Plaintiffs severe emotional
distress, inability to function in her school environment and ultimate enrollment in private
school. Plaintiffs have incurred costs due to Defendants’ forcing H.B. to leave the
district.

Plaintiffs N.B., S.B. and H.B. were harmed by Defendants’ breach as well as numerous
other victims of anti-Semitism, racism and discrimination at Defendant Ma.hop.ac Central
School District.

By reason of the foregoing, PlaintifIs were and continue to be damaged as against each of

the Defendants for a sum in excess of all jurisdictional limits. Defendants are jointly and

severally liable in damages and other relief as set forth herein.
By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff was and continues to be damaged as against each of
the Defendants in ways that cannot be compensated by financial recompense.

PUNITIVE DAMAGES

That plaintiff repeats, reiterates and re-alleges each and every allegation in the preceding
paragraphs of the within Complaint, with the same force and effect as though each were
more fully set forth at length herein.

That at all times mentioned herein, Defendants had a duty to properly train, supervise and
monitor its employees, agents, representatives, servants and assigns, and to monitor,
supervise, educate and discipline its students, to prevent discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, violence and threats of violence, and hate and bias crimes and other
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230.

231.

232

233.

234.

violations of law.

Defendants failed to protect its Jewish students from religious and racial discrimination,

harassment, intimidation, violence and threats of violence, and hate and bias crimes and

other violations.

Upon information and belief, the failure on the part of Defendants to train, supervise and
monitor its employees, agents, representatives, servants and assigns, and fo monitor,
supervise, educate and discipline non-Plaintiff Student Actors, did cause irreparable harm
to Plaintiffs.

That at all times herein mentioned, Defendants intentionally, wantonly, fraudulently
and/or wrongfully concealed from the Plaintiffs, and the Class members that Defendants
were not propetly training, supervising and monitoring its employees, agents,
representatives, servants and assigns, or monitoring, supervising, educating and
disciplining its students,

That at all times herein mentioned, Defendants intentionally, wantonly, fraudulently
and/or wrongfully withheld information from Plaintiffs and Class members, that
Defendants were not properly training, supervising and monitoring its employees, agents,
representatives, servants and assigns, or monitoring, supervising, educating and
disciplining its students, and that Plaintiffs and Class members were at risk of exposure to
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, violence and threats of violence, and hate and
bias erimes and other violations solely as a result of their being of Jewish heritage.

That by reason of all of the foregoing, the Defendants were grossly negligent and acted in
wanton disregard of the well-being of the Plaintiffs and Class members.
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235.

236.

That the above conduct involves moral turpitude, was reprehensible, shocks the public

conscious and demonstrated a gross, wanton, depraved indifference and/or deliberate and

reckless disregard for the safety of Plaintiffs and Class members.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiffs’ demand trial by jury.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, on their own behalf and on behalf of the Class, pray for

judgment against Defendants, and each of them as follows:

1.

For an order certifying the Class under the applicable provision of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure 23, and the Plaintiffs as the representative of the Class,
and appointing Plaintiffs’ counsel to represent the Class.

Declare that Defendants® actions and inactions, including Defendants’
perpetuation of the hostile educational environment based on religion and race
within the schools of the Mahopac Central School District, Defendants’ racially
and religiously discriminatory disciplinary practices and procedures, Defendants’
policies for investigating and disciplining students, and Defendants’ policy and
practice of retaliating against students and parents who assert their rights, violate
rights guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution,
and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d.

With respect to the claims raised by the Class consisting of all students of Jewish
descent who are currently or in the future will be enrolled in schools within the
Mahopac Central School District and their parents or guardians, enjoin any further
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violations of Plaintiffs’ constitutional and statutory rights, including ordering
Defendants to investigate and address all acts of racial and religious harassment,
intimidation, discrimination, bullying and violence or threats of violence and
similar violations; implement transparent and objective policies to ensure equal
treatment and access to programs and activities, eliminate racially and religiously
discriminatory discipline; cease and desist from retaliating against and violating
the rights of students and parents who complain about discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, bullying and violence or threats of violence and similar violations:
and provide compensatory educational services for students who have been denied
access to education due to Defendants’ unlawful conduct, and any other
appropriate relief the Court deems just and proper.

For an order of the Court for supervised employee training and diversity and
tolerance programs for all employees and students within the Mahopac Central
School District on a periodic basis at least four times during each school year.

For an order of the Court for supervised oversight of the above-mentioned training
and programs to ensute that the trainings and programs are realistically and truly
implemented and enforced.

For an order of the Court for supervised oversight of the implementation of
programs aimed at preventing discriminatjon, harassment, intimidation, bullying,
hate and bias crimes.

For an order of the Court for supervised oversight of the seeking and obtaining of
federal grant monies for necessary programs aimed at preventing discrimination,
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harassment, intimidation, builying, hate and bias crimes.

8. For compensatory damages sustained by Plaintiffs and members of the Class,
against all Defendants, jointly and severally, in an amount to be determined at
trial.

9. For an order granting Plaintiffs monetary damages for tuition and all fees, cosis
and expenses, direct and indirect, for private education.

10. For punitive and exemplary damages according to proof against all Defendants,
jointly and severally, in an amount to be determined at trial.

11. For an award of prejudgment interest, costs, disbursements, attorney fees and
cxpert fees as provided for in 42 U.S.C. §§1988 and 1981 and Féd. R.Civ.P. 54
d Q).

12. For injunctive relief in the form of an order requiring Defendants to preserve all
relevant documents, and an order preventing Defendants from discussing this
action with each other or their employees, agents, representatives, servants and
assigns, except with their respective counsel or as otherwise necessary to comply

with document and discovery requests.

13. For such other and further relief as the Court deems equitable or appropriate under
the circumstances.
Dated: December 8, 2010 Law Office of Peter D. Hoffman, P.C.
Katonah, NY
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. /e VD
By: Giulia Frasca, Esq. (PH-83 06)
Attomney for Plaintiffs
200 Katonah Avenue
Katonah, NY 10536
Phone: (914) 232-2242
Facsimile: (914) 232-2245
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